
EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
1 If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately. 
2 Follow the green signs. 
3 Use the stairs not the lifts. 
4 Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 
 
 
If you require further information, please contact: Katharine Simpson 
Telephone: 01344 352233 
Email: katharine.simpson@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
Published: 11 October 2011 

  

 

 NOTICE OF MEETING 
Education Employment Sub Committee 
Monday 17 October 2011, 5.30 pm 
Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, Bracknell 
To: Education Employment Sub Committee 
Councillor Brunel-Walker (Chairman), Councillors Allen, Mrs Birch, Davison and Mrs Temperton 
cc: Substitute Members of the Committee 
Councillors Thomas, Angell, Blatchford, Ms Brown, Dudley, Mrs Pile and Worrall 
 
ALISON SANDERS 
Director of Corporate Services 
 



 

 

Education Employment Sub Committee 
Monday 17 October 2011, 5.30 pm 
Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, 
Bracknell 
AGENDA 
 
 Page No 
1. Apologies for Absence/Substitute Members   

 To receive any apologies for absence and to note the attendance of 
any substitute members.  
 

 

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are asked to declare any personal or prejudicial interest and 
the nature of that interest, in respect of any matter to be considered at 
this meeting.  
 

 

3. Urgent Items of Business   

 Any other items which, pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the Chairman decides are urgent.  
 

 

4. Minutes   

 To receive the minutes of the Education Employment Committee 
meeting held on 19 July 2011.  
 

1 - 4 

5. Severance Options   

 To receive a report setting out the reasons for, and legal basis of, the 
Council’s current severance policy and to consider what approach to 
take in the future.  
 

5 - 12 

 



EDUCATION EMPLOYMENT SUB 
COMMITTEE 
19 JULY 2011 
5.30  - 6.20 PM 
  

 
Present: 
Councillors Allen, Mrs Birch, Brunel-Walker, Davison and Mrs Temperton 
 
Also Present: 
Mr Graham Jackson, NASUWT 
Councillor Ward, Executive Member for Finance,Resources and Assets  
 
In Attendance: 
Tony Madden, Chief Officer: Human Resources 
Paul Yound, Human Resources Manager, Children, Young People and Learning 
 

1. Appointment of Chairman  
RESOLVED that Councillor Brunel-Walker be elected Chairman of the Education 
Employment Sub-Committee for the 2011/12 Municipal Year. 
 

COUNCILLOR BRUNEL-WALKER IN THE CHAIR 

2. Apologies for Absence/Substitute Members  
There were no apologies for absence or substitute members in attendance. 

3. Declarations of Interest  
There were no declarations of interest. 

4. Urgent Items of Business  
There were no urgent items of business. 

5. Minutes of Previous Meeting  
The Committee received the minutes of the meeting of the Education Employment 
Sub-Committee held on 26 January 2010.  

6. Academy Schools  
The Committee received a report providing an overview of the employment 
implications of a school converting to academy status. 
 
The report included an overview of the development of academies, an outline of the 
freedoms available to academy schools and an overview of the process that schools 
had to go through if they wished to become academies. 
 

Agenda Item 4

1



 

To date, only one school in Bracknell Forest, Ranelagh School, had made the 
decision to become an academy. Although the number of staff who had become 
involved in consultations about the transfer had been limited a number of discussions 
about the proposed changes had taken place at internal staff meetings.  Throughout 
the consultation process there had been positive interaction and dialogue with the 
trade unions 
 
The Committee was informed that staff would not be given new contracts however 
they would be sent TUPE letters transferring their current terms and conditions to 
their new employers.   It was stressed that TUPE was only valid for the moment of 
transfer and the School could change staff terms and conditions the next day if it 
wished however, any changes could only be implemented if there were clear and 
substantive reasons for doing so and after a set process had been followed.  Post 
transfer the School would still be bound by the Teachers Pay and Conditions 
document when dealing with current staff and staff would continue to be members of 
the Teachers Pension Scheme 
 
One of the more complex elements of the consultation had related to the flexible 
benefits package that staff had been offered through Bracknell Forest Council.  
Following the transfer staff would no longer be eligible to buy into the scheme 
however the School had taken the decision to buy into the same scheme used by the 
Council to enable staff to make continued use of some benefits for example childcare 
vouchers and the Bike to Work Scheme.       
 
Ranelagh’s Head Teacher had made it clear that she wanted the close working 
relationship that currently existed between the School and the local authority to 
continue.  The School had also indicated that they intended, in the short-term, to 
continue to sustain purchase levels of local authority services as at 2010/11. 
 
The full financial impact on the Council was not yet know however Ranelagh’s 
transfer was not expected to have a significant financial impact on the Council at the 
current time.   
 
Discussions were taking place at a number of the borough’s schools over the 
possibility of becoming academies however no decisions had yet been taken 
 
The Committee expressed the view that rather than being reactive to events it would 
be more productive for the Council to take a strategic approach to academies and the 
services that the local authority might offer those schools that adopted Academy 
Status.  It was acknowledged that there was not currently a strategy setting out the 
Council’s approach to Academies in place however the Children, Young People and 
Learning Departmental Management Team were currently discussing the approaches 
that might be adopted. 
 
The Committee noted the report. 

7. Strike Action 30 June 2011  
The Committee received a report providing an overview of the industrial action by 
teachers that took place on 30 June 2011. 
 
It was reported that across the Borough’s schools 257 teachers had participated in 
industrial action, 15 Schools had closed, 5 schools had partially opened and 19 
schools had remained open.   
 

2



 

The Committee was informed that there continued to be disquiet amongst the 
teaching profession towards the Government’s proposed changes and although it 
was not yet clear what form it might take it was considered likely that there would be 
further industrial action later in the year.  It was also considered likely that trade 
unions that had not previously taken industrial action would participate in any future 
action. 
 
It was clarified that despite being listed twice, once as remaining open and once as 
having closed due to industrial action, St Michael’s CE Aided Primary School in 
Sandhurst had in fact closed.  It was also noted that although Annex A  showed St 
Joseph’s Catholic Primary School as having closed teachers had decided not to take 
industrial action and the School had remained open.   
 
During the run up to the strikes on 30 June 2011, a number of  extremely positive 
discussions between officers and Trade Union representatives had taken place over 
the impacts that any strike action might have for schools. It was hoped that these 
positive relationships would continue in the future.  
 
The Committee praised the quality of the information made available to the public 
about the strike action and any implications and congratulated all the staff involved in 
this area of work. 
 
The Committee noted the report. 

8. Date of Next Meeting  
It was noted that the next meeting of the Education Employment Sub Committee 
would take place on Tuesday 11 October 2011 at 5.30pm. 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

3



This page is intentionally left blank

4



TO: EDUCATION EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE 
17 OCTOBER 2011 

  
 

SEVERANCE POLICY OPTIONS 
(Director of Corporate Services – HR) 

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
1.1 To set out the reasons for and legal basis of the Council’s current severance policy 

and to consider what approach to take in the future.  In the light of the continuing 
need to make budget reductions, there is a need to examine the level of severance 
payment but also a need to ensure that future restructurings and redundancies are 
dealt with fairly and good employee relations maintained. 

2 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 That the Committee recommend to full Council that it: 
2.1 Retains the use of actual weekly pay levels for redundancy purposes 
2.2 Retains the policy of paying statutory weeks only to those with immediate 

access to pension 
2.3 Reduces the current x 2.5 multiplier of the statutory table for those with no 

immediate access to pension to a multiplier between x 1.75 and x 2. 
2.4 Continues with the policy of awarding added years only in exceptional 

circumstances. 
2.5 Applies the new policy with effect from 1 December 2011. 

3 REASONS FOR THE PROPOSED CHANGE 
3.1 The approach to paying a multiplier of the statutory redundancy calculator has helped 

to maintain a positive employee relations climate in difficult times.  Maintaining a 
difference between those with access to pension and those without means that 
enhancements are targeted at those who have no additional means of support from 
their pensions after they have lost their jobs at the Council. 

3.2 The new recommended severance policy is the median level applied across local 
government and represents a balanced approach towards severance payments.  
56% of authorities who took part in a recent survey of severance policies confirmed 
that they paid at this level. 

3.3 As part of the general responsibility for the Council’s budget this issue was 
considered by the Executive as it needs to be in accordance with the Council’s 
overall financial planning. 

 In addition, the Executive is responsible for the overall performance of the Council 
and any change to redundancy arrangement is likely to impact on this, as outlined in 
the report. 

Agenda Item 5

5



4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
4.1 The Council could provide enhanced payments to all those eligible for redundancy, 

irrespective of pension access.  However this would mean an increase in costs and a 
more generous package for those who would already have access to pension on 
being declared redundant. 

4.2 The Council could use up to a x3 multiplier but this would lead to a significant 
increase in redundancy costs. 

4.3 The Council could use a x1.5 multiplier but this would provide only a very modest 
increase on statutory amounts and would put it below the average level for 
severance policies amongst all local government employers. 

4.4 The Council could use statutory weeks only, which would make its severance 
payments the lowest amongst all local government employers. 

4.5 The Council could use different and variable multipliers, but the legal defence that it 
is currently using the statutory basis or a multiplier thereof would be invalid and 
would open itself to accusations of age discrimination which it would find hard to 
resist. 

5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
5.1 Severance policy principles. 
 Since 1999, those Committees responsible for employment have kept a consistent 

approach to severance payments and to the principles underpinning the granting of 
early retirements.  Severance payments are also closely linked with Pensions 
Regulations, and these will be mentioned in this report but only as they relate to 
severance; the full set of pension discretions is periodically reviewed by this 
Committee. 

 
5.2 Selection for redundancy 
 
5.2.1 The Council’s Redundancy Policy deals in detail with how employees are selected for 

redundancy and is as follows: 
 
 Where a redundancy is unavoidable and more than one employee is potentially 

affected, the method of selection will be fair and non-discriminatory. 
 
 Factors in the selection method will include: 
 

• The qualifications, skills, experience and ability of postholders required to 
maintain the efficient operation of the Council’s services. 

• An employee’s past work performance, attendance record, disciplinary record. 
• Length of service 
• Curriculum needs of the school. 

 

6



 This approach is standard throughout the public sector as it is based on the simple 
principle of firstly retaining those employees who, going forward, fit the criteria for any 
new structure and are therefore operationally the best fit, those who have a 
reasonable sickness/disciplinary record before eventually moving to the final criteria 
of Last In/First Out (LIFO). 

 
5.3 Current Severance Policy 
5.3.1 In brief, the current approach to redundancy/severance payments is as follows: 

• In all cases the Council uses actual weekly pay to calculate the amount due. 
• The Council pays the statutory number of weeks to those who have immediate 

access to their pension. 
• For those who do not have access to pension, an enhanced severance payment 

is made, as they will have no pension income or pension-related lump sum on 
leaving.  This is x 2.5 the statutory minimum level of payment with a maximum 
level of 75 weeks pay. 

This policy aims to give a fair but not over generous settlement to employees and 
has been a significant factor in the sound industrial relations context around 
severance over a number of years in which major Council reorganisations have been 
implemented.  The logic of the policy was to exercise discretion in favour of those 
with no access to pension to ensure they received a reasonable severance package.   
The full extent of the discretions available through the Discretionary Compensation 
Regulations (DCR) which allows councils to pay up to 104 weeks in redundancy 
situations, has never been used as the Council felt it was unnecessary to utilise the 
maximum amounts.  In particular Bracknell’s approach avoids paying enhanced 
redundancy payments to those who already have access to pension. 

5.4 The legal basis of the severance payments made 
5.4.1 Employers must pay, as a minimum, statutory redundancy in accordance with the 

Employment Rights Act 1996 (ERA).  The number of weeks paid varies with age and 
service, but the maximum achievable amount is 30 weeks pay while the minimum is 
1 weeks pay.  The ERA imposes a cap on the amount of weekly pay to be used in 
the calculation, currently £400 p/w.  However it is common for employers to waive 
this cap and use actual weekly pay, and virtually all local authorities including this 
one do so; the Local Government (Discretionary Payments) Regulations 1996 
explicitly give Local Government employers the power to use actual weekly pay for 
the calculations. 

5.4.2 The Discretionary Compensation Regulations (DCR) available to local government 
allow payment of severance up to 104 weeks pay.  There has to be an objective 
justification for the amount paid, and where age and service are a factor in this, the 
model used must be a multiple of the number of weeks in the statutory redundancy 
calculator, eg x2 or x3. 

 The pension scheme rules allow the award of added years, and the Council’s policy 
is that up to five added years may be awarded but that this would be only in 
exceptional circumstances.  The option is very rarely exercised, only twice in the past 
ten years. 

7



5.4.3 No change is suggested to the principles of early retirement agreed by this 
Committee, which are: 

 (i) No employee should regard early retirement for which the employer’s consent 
is required as his or her automatic right, nor should the exercise of the 
employer’s discretions be expected as a right.  Discretions will only be 
exercised where there is a benefit to the organisation which adequately 
justifies their use. 

 
 (ii) Early retirement is not a substitute for proper performance management and 

will not be used by management to resolve competence/capability problems. 
 
 (iii) On occasions early retirement is a valuable management tool which enables 

decisions to be made to effect savings and/or improve efficiency in the 
organisation.  It will also avoid the negative industrial relations impact of 
compulsory redundancies. 

 
 (iv) Employees will be treated in a fair and equitable manner. 
 
 (v) Each case must be assessed individually, and the costs and benefits to the 

organisation clearly presented to the decision-makers as part of that case. 
 

(vi) Decisions on early retirement must be made with regard to the Council’s 
overriding responsibility to act with prudence and propriety and in accordance 
with the age discrimination laws. 

5.5 The National Picture 
5.5.1 The Local Government Employers organisation commissioned a survey in 2009 of 

the severance policies operated by employers across the UK – 118 organisations 
responded.  The first survey related to 2009/10 and during the last year 26% of 
respondents have changed this policy. 

 
The results from the second year of the survey ie 2010/11 are tabulated below: 

 
Policy in cases of redundancy %age Local 

Authorities 
(policy for 
general LA 
staff) 

%age Local 
Authorities 
(policy for 
school 
support staff) 

Actual salary for redundancy payments 94 86 
   
Using the lump sum (DCR) compensation in all 
cases 

46 52 
 

Using the lump sum (DCR) compensation in 
some cases 

10 13 
   
Multiplier applied where DCR compensation 
given: 

  
X1 Not quoted Not quoted 
X1.5 24 29 
X2 32 29 
X2.5 4 5 
X3 2 2 

 
 Note that whilst schools can set their own redundancy policies, the approach since 

1998 has been for them to mirror that of the Council. 

8



5.5.2 The main findings of the survey were that more than 9 out of 10 respondents used 
actual salaries to calculate redundancy payments; that around a half of respondents 
awarded lump sum compensation in all redundancy cases; and that where offered, 
lump sum compensation was generally calculated using multipliers up to x3, but that 
the most commonly used multiplier was x2 (this especially true for the South east 
authorities). 

 
5.6 Options on use of discretions 
5.6.1 As can be seen from the information above and in paragraph 5.3, the Council pays 

neither the highest nor the lowest severance of the authorities surveyed. 
 Clearly there are a range of options available to the Council if it were to consider 

changing its approach to the payment of severance for employees: 
• A  Pay statutory redundancy only at the capped weekly rate to all employees 

irrespective of pension access (ie exercise no discretions) 
• B  Pay statutory redundancy only at actual weekly pay rate to all employees, 

irrespective of pension access 
• C  Where there is no access to pension, pay a multiplier of the actual weeks’ 

pay in statutory redundancy, either x1.5, x2, x2.5 or x3 all fall within the 104 
week maximum limit; use the statutory table at actual week’s pay only (ie x1) 
where there is access to pension. 

5.7 Cost implications  
5.7.1 2010/11 was a year which saw a larger than usual number of redundancies across 

the Council due to the challenging financial situation.  In total, the current policy 
resulted in 74 redundancy payments. 

 The average time to recoup the redundancy payment for those without access to 
pension, based on the current x2.5 statutory enhanced payments scheme, 25.2 
weeks or 0.5 years.  Median payment: £5,946. 

 The average time to recoup the redundancy element of severance for those with 
access to pensions, whose payment is the statutory number of weeks, 17.7 weeks or 
0.35 years.  Median payment: £2,961. 

 The adjusted medians based on 2008/09, 2009/10 and 2010/11 figures are: 
 Median payment for enhanced payments (no access to pension): £5,020. 

Median payment for statutory payments (access to pension): £4,630. 
5.7.2 The 3 year figures reduced the 2010/11 enhanced (non-pension based) median 

whilst the statutory median is higher, because a large number of the statutory 
beneficiaries were on higher salaries/age/service than those made redundant in 
2010/11. 
This clearly demonstrates that the annual medians are nowhere near a constant, and 
one year is very unlike another. 

9



Capitalised costs of pension are not included in the figures as pensions are 
automatically triggered in redundancy cases for those over 55 and thus the Council 
has no influence on the capitalised costs (the capitalised cost is the one off amount 
the Council has to pay to the Pension Fund to allow for early payment of a pension). 

5.7.3  Although the budget position within schools has been challenging the number of 
redundancies made during 2010/11 was three school staff.  

5.8 Non-cost impact 
5.8.1 There is clearly a significant climate of change affecting local government 

employees; at a national level pension changes are inevitable and employees have 
had a 2 year pay freeze which is likely to be extended for perhaps another 2 years.  
At a local level as part of its savings plan: 
• 18 months ago, the Council removed Essential Car User status from 164 staff 

whilst at the same time introducing car parking charges between £100 and £450 
pa which saved £600K per annum. 

• at its last meeting the Employment Committee agreed to reduce car mileage 
rates which saved a further £40k per annum. 

5.8.2 Employees have clearly seen a reduction in their terms of employment, an erosion of 
some elements of their base conditions and, as a consequence, there is no doubt 
that local government is in a very difficult employee relations environment.  It is 
against that background that a review of the severance terms must be viewed as if 
any change is perceived by staff as being unfair this could impact on the 
performance of the organisation on respect of service delivery. 

 There are some specific issues which impact on the severance scheme itself: 
• It is a reasonable assumption that fewer employees At Risk would be prepared to 

volunteer for redundancy at rates which were viewed as below the norm for local 
government, and that selection outcomes would be more vigorously contested as 
employees contest their selection for redundancy. 

• Any significant change to the current policy would undoubtedly be seen as 
penalising those about to lose their jobs, and would not find favour with the 
unions.   The Council enjoys a constructive and realistic relationship with its main 
trades unions, who acknowledge that change is sometimes unavoidable but try to 
ensure fair treatment of those At Risk; a change to the current policy would affect 
this situation. 

• Employees already feel that other relatively modest changes and proposed 
changes to terms and conditions are damaging morale, and a change to the 
severance pay policy would likely be seen in the same light, ie a measure which 
particularly penalises vulnerable and low paid employees. 

5.8.3 It is believed that the Council’s ability to achieve structural changes and savings in 
the context of relatively harmonious and constructive employee relations is partly due 
to the commitment to pay above the statutory minimum to those who are unfortunate 
enough to lose their jobs without any immediate payment of pension available whilst 
avoiding the excesses of payments at the level of maximum discretion.  The current 
employment market makes it quite difficult for people to secure employment readily, 
and the severance package helps them through the period of seeking new work. 

10



5.8.4 Bracknell’s good reputation as an employer includes the way it is seen to treat those 
who leave its employment as well as those who remain in employment.  It is also 
clear that in the past the Council’s excellent performance (as demonstrated by its 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment reports and other external inspections) 
has, in no small measure, been due to it being an “Employer of Choice” and its 
reputation of having a robust but fair approach to employee relations. 

5.8.5  Although the pay and conditions for teachers is different from the local government 
employees similar arrangements are in force regarding a pay freeze with the last 
increase taking affect in 2010.  

6 CONCLUSION 
6.1 Redundancies have become a necessary part of the management of the Council’s 

workforce.  It is important to ensure they are managed in a fair, equitable and cost 
effective way; the changes to the current policy outlined in this report reflect that 
approach ie 
• Maintain the use of actual weekly pay. 
• Reduce the multiplier. 
• Maintain the use of statutory pay levels for those with access to pension. 
• Award added years only in exceptional circumstances. 
• Apply the policy from the earliest date possible ie from 1 December 2011. 

7 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 
Borough Solicitor 

7.1 Nothing to add to report. 
Borough Treasurer 

7.2 The costs for school redundancies are charged to the central part of the Schools 
Budget managed by the local authority. The budget line for this will be set in 
agreement with the Schools Forum and any under spend is reallocated to schools. 
Any overspend in the budget line will need to be covered by the dedicated schools 
budget. 

 
Equalities Impact Assessment 

7.3 An EIA has been completed with particular regard paid to the impact of any age and 
length of service related issues in the light of the Council’s use of the statutory linked 
calculators.  No adverse impacts were noted. 
Strategic Risk Management Issues  

7.4 As outlined in the report particularly paragraph 5.8. 

11



8 CONSULTATION 
 Principal Groups Consulted 
8.1 This proposed policy change was considered by the trades unions. 
 Method of Consultation 
8.2 Teacher and Support Staff Association 
 Representations Received 
8.3 No representations have been received to date from the teacher unions. The trades 

unions for school support staff, Unison and GMB, expressed that they are not 
supportive of the suggested changes and advised that they were making their 
representation through the Employment Committee.  

Background Papers 
 
Contact for further information 
Tony Madden, Corporate Services: HR  - 01344 352049 
tony.madden@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
Paul Young, Children, Young People and Learning, HR – 01344 354060 
paul.young@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
 
 

12


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Severance Options

